
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
ROWAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

APRIL 21, 2003 – 7:00 PM 
J. NEWTON COHEN, SR. ROOM, ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

 
Present:  Steve Blount, Chairman 

Gus Andrews, Vice-Chairman  
Leda Belk, Member 

Chad Mitchell, Member 
Frank Tadlock, Member 

 
The County Manager, the Clerk to the Board, Finance Director and County Attorney 
were also present. 
 
Chairman Blount convened the meeting at 7:00 pm. 
 
Commissioner Tadlock provided the Invocation and Commissioner Andrews led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
ADDITIONS  
 
Commissioner Tadlock requested that the Commissioners proclaim Thursday, May 1, 
2003 as a National Day of Prayer.  Chairman Blount stated the addition would be 
considered as Item 1.5 after the Consent Agenda. 
 
Chairman Blount added the following: 

• Item 13.1 Discussion regarding a school location focus group   
• Item 13.2 Consideration of the construction management contract   
• Item 13.3 DOT maintenance funds 
• Item 13.4 Discussion concerning a motor cross racetrack  

 
LIAISON REPORTS 
 
Commissioner Mitchell expressed his appreciation for the volunteers who worked with 
the Special Olympics and also expressed his congratulations to the athletes who 
participated in the event.  
 

 1



CONSIDERATION OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Commissioner Tadlock made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, followed by a 
second from Commissioner Andrews.  The motion passed unanimously.  
 
The Consent Agenda consisted of the following items: 

 
A. Approval of the 03/17/2003 minutes 
B. Approval of revisions to the Work First Program 
C. Approval of Resolution supporting UNC-Charlotte 

 
ITEM 1.5:  ADDITION OF PROCLAMATION FOR NATIONAL DAY OF 
PRAYER 
 
Chairman Blount read a Proclamation that declared that May 1, 2003 as A Day of Prayer 
in Rowan County.   
 
Commissioner Tadlock moved to approve the Proclamation as presented.  Commissioner 
Belk seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
REQUEST FOR THE FREEDMAN’S CEMETERY MEMORIAL 
 
Dr. Catrelia Hunter and Denny Mecham addressed the Board concerning support for the 
Freedman’s Cemetery Project located at the corner of Liberty and Church Streets.     
 
Dr. Hunter reported that $90,000 was needed to complete the project and made a request 
for the Board to contribute $10,000 for the memorial.  
 
Ms. Mecham explained that Waterworks Visual Arts Center began its support of the 
program in 1997.  Ms. Mecham said the City of Salisbury has supported the program 
with $10,000 and would also be responsible for maintaining the memorial once it is 
established.  Ms. Mecham discussed various grants in support of the project and 
expressed hope that the Board would also join the effort. 
 
Chairman Blount stated that the request would be give to the County Manager for 
consideration during budget reviews. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
Chairman Blount referred to a letter regarding the Legislative Briefing to be held  
May 14, 2003 in Raleigh.  Chairman Blount said the briefing would be “worthwhile” and 
asked Board members to advise the Clerk if they plan to attend. 
 
 
 

 2



APPROVAL OF THE AMBULANCE FRANCHISE FOR ROCKWELL FIRE 
DEPARTMENT 
 
Wayne Ashworth, EMS Director, presented the Board with a rewritten ambulance 
franchise for Rowan County.  Mr. Ashworth said the current franchise ordinance is 
seventeen (17) years old and has never been rewritten or revised since its implementation. 
 
Mr. Ashworth said that approximately two (2) years ago the County had been presented 
with a request from the Rockwell Rural Volunteer Fire Department for an ambulance 
franchise in the county.  Mr. Ashworth continued by saying that Rowan County presently 
has a franchise with the Rowan Rescue Squad, Enochville Fire & Rescue, China Grove 
Fire Department and KOSA.  Mr. Ashworth said the request for a franchise from 
Rockwell is the only additional request the county has received.   
 
Mr. Ashworth reviewed the changes in the rewritten Ambulance Ordinance and requested 
that the Board approve the revised franchise ordinance.  Mr. Ashworth said it was an 
advantage to have additional ambulance stations throughout the county, as long as those 
stations were under the control of EMS and the medical direction of the county.  Mr. 
Ashworth said private companies were also subject to the franchise.  Mr. Ashworth stated 
that Attorney Holshouser had reviewed the proposed ordinance. 
 
Chairman Blount inquired if the current franchise holders had reviewed the changes.  Mr. 
Ashworth responded that each of the current franchise holders had been supplied with a 
copy of the proposed changes and that none of the responses indicated problems with the 
changes.  Mr. Ashworth said a copy had been sent to Rockwell. 
 
In response to queries from Commissioner Andrews, Mr. Ashworth stated that all of the 
ambulances in Rowan County are subject to the ordinance as it is currently written and 
that franchises have been routinely renewed under the old ordinance.  Mr. Ashworth said 
he had not received complaints regarding the proposed changes in the ordinance.  Mr. 
Ashworth explained that upon approval of the changes, he hoped to have all franchises 
renewed, effective July 1, 2003. 
 
Mr. Ashworth agreed with Commissioner Andrews that having additional ambulances in 
the county could prove to be beneficial in the event of a catastrophe. 
 
Commissioner Belk questioned the time frame for Rockwell Rural Volunteer Fire 
Department to “run their ambulance,” once the changes were approved.  Mr. Ashworth 
responded that the franchise could be granted as soon as the paperwork was completed. 
 
Commissioner Tadlock questioned the rates charged by those who hold ambulance 
franchises.  Mr. Ashworth stated that the charges could not exceed the county rate. 
 
Mr. Ashworth responded to Commissioner Andrews, saying that each organization has its 
own operating expenses and that the income source does not come from the county. 
 

 3



Mr. Ashworth discussed the minimum requirements for a medical responder. 
 
Mr. Ashworth noted that Finance Director Leslie Heidrick, would research Item 9.5, on 
page 7 in the rewritten ordinance, in an effort to determine the percentage that should be 
listed. 
 
Commissioner Andrews made a motion to adopt the Ambulance Ordinance with the 
modifications as presented.  Commissioner Belk seconded the motion and the motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING ON TEXT AMENDMENTS FOR SCHOOLS AND 
ESTABLISHMENT OF AN INSTITUTIONAL ZONING DISTRICT 
 
Mr. Lytle reviewed the zoning text amendments and the Proposed Use Table.   
 
Mr. Lytle highlighted the proposed changes, which were indicated in red print in the 
Board’s agenda packets.  
 
Chairman Blount opened the public hearing to entertain citizen comment concerning the 
proposed changes.  With no citizens wishing to address the Board, Chairman Blount 
closed the public hearing.  
 
Commissioner Belk confirmed with Mr. Lytle that Group Homes would be addressed at a 
future meeting.  Commissioner Belk expressed her thanks to Mr. Lytle for the work put 
into the project. 
 
Commissioner Andrews also praised the work and dedication of the Planning Board 
under the leadership of Mr. Lytle. 
 
Commissioner Andrews moved to approve the amendments as presented.  Commissioner 
Belk seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR CUP-27-02, A REQUEST FROM SBA TOWERS 
 
Chairman Blount stated that the Board would consider three (3) conditional use permits.  
Chairman Blount read the Chairman’s Speech (Exhibit A) and said the speech would be 
applicable to all three (3) requests.   
 
Chairman Blount declared the hearing to be in session for consideration of CUP-27-02.  
Chairman Blount said the hearing would focus on an application submitted by SBA 
Network Services, Inc. (Exhibit B) for a telecommunications facility.  The facility would 
be located on a portion of Tax Parcel 241-009 that includes placement of a 100’ 
monopole tower.  The tower would be on a portion of the Doris Leazer property located 
on Unity Church Road.  
 
The Clerk swore in those wishing to provide testimony in the case. 

 4



Ed Muire, Assistant County Planner, provided the Staff Report (Exhibit C) by using a 
power point presentation (Exhibit D).  Mr. Muire said the property for the proposed site 
is zoned RA. 
 
Mr. Muire referred to the Site Plan Excerpt (Exhibit E) as well as the copy of the 
application (Exhibit B).  Mr. Muire referred to the map of the coverage area, which 
depicted the range for service to be provided.  Mr. Muire also pointed out the area where 
the signal would be expected to dissipate.    Mr. Muire referred to the “green towers” in 
Attachment A (Exhibit F), which are pending applications currently under staff review.  
  
Mr. Muire mentioned that the Staff Review, Attachment A1, (Exhibit G), included the 
applicant’s research of potential sites.  Mr. Lytle highlighted the sites that had been 
researched for the project.  
 
Mr. Muire referred to Attachment A2 (Exhibit H), which demonstrated the need for the 
project. 
 
Continuing with the power point presentation, Mr. Muire pointed out the visual impacts 
that existing towers have on the rural areas of the county.  Mr. Muire also showed 
photographs taken on April 16, 2003 of the proposed site.  Mr. Muire explained that the 
site plans submitted with the application show the buffer and screening around the tower. 
 
Mr. Muire discussed the balloon test and tower height requirements in the Staff Review 
(Exhibit C).   
 
Mr. Muire said Fred Griffin, contracted as a telecommunications consultant, had 
reviewed the application and that correspondence recommending approval by Mr. Griffin 
was included in the packets as Attachment B (Exhibit I).  Mr. Muire said performance 
bonds had been submitted for issuance if the tower is approved.    
 
Mr. Muire said staff recommends approval of the request based on the applicant 
satisfactorily addressing the conditional use evaluation criteria. 
 
In response to a query from Commissioner Andrews regarding the tower on Union 
Church Road, Mr. Muire said that the tower is under staff review and that he is not 
prepared to discuss that site. 
 
Commissioner Tadlock questioned the concept of a monopole tower.  Mr. Muire 
responded that there is no guide support for the facility and that monopole towers tend to 
be smaller.  
 
Bruce Thompson, attorney from Parker, Poe, Adams & Bernstein, LLP, 150 Fayetteville 
Street Mall, in Raleigh distributed a handout (Exhibit J) and addressed the Board.    Mr. 
Thompson said he was present on behalf of AT&T Wireless regarding all three (3) of the 
conditional use permit applications to be heard by the Board.  Mr. Thompson said the 

 5



testimony would be common to all three (3) sites and in an effort to save time, the 
testimony from the initial hearing would be referred to hearings 2 and 3.  
 
Mr. Thompson said that under North Carolina law AT&T Wireless is entitled to a 
conditional use permit if it demonstrates evidence that the application meets the 
requirements of the ordinance.  Mr. Thompson stated that the testimony to be presented 
would demonstrate that AT&T had complied with the standards and that the county’s 
consultant had also recommended approval of the permit. 
 
Mr. Thompson said the case would focus on the general standards contained in Section 
VIII (d) of the Zoning Ordinance: 

1. The development of the property in accordance with the proposed 
conditions will not materially endanger the public health or safety. 

2. That the development of the property in accordance with the proposed 
conditions will not substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting 
property, or that the development is a public necessity, and 

3. That the location and character of the development in accordance with the 
proposed conditions will be in general harmony with the area in which it is 
located and in general conformity with any adopted County plans. 

 
Mr. Thompson referred to Article IV Section 9, which sets forth the criteria for which the 
applications must be evaluated. 
 
Mr. Thompson said the Board would hear from three (3) additional witnesses:  

1. Fred Womble, Zoning Specialist for SBA Network Services 
2. Scott Robinson, State Certified General Real Estate Appraiser 
3. Gilbert Nyandjo, Radio Frequency Engineer –AT&T Liberty Project      

  
Fred Womble, 4402 Stewart Andrew Blvd., Charlotte, NC, said he was a Zoning 
Specialist for SBA Network Services.  Mr. Womble read from the Affidavit of Fred 
Womble as listed in (Exhibit J). 
 
Mr. Womble referred to Section IX of the ordinance, and reviewed the evaluation criteria 
that the applicant must comply with: 
 

• Adequate transportation access is provided to the site as demonstrated by the site 
plan showing the access easement 

• There will be no hazardous safety conditions as a result of the tower 
• The tower will not generate any noise, odor, glare or dust 
• The site will generate an average of one (1) trip per month by AT&T personnel 

 
Mr. Womble stated that the proposed use complies with all of the requirements of  
Section X of the ordinance.   
 
Mr. Thompson introduced Scott Robinson as an expert in the subject of real property 
evaluations. 

 6



Scott Robinson, 104 West Colonial Drive, mentioned that he had served on the Salisbury 
Planning Board. 
 
Mr. Robinson said he had been engaged by SBA and AT&T to perform an impact study 
for the proposed site.  Mr. Robinson explained that the impact study had involved the 
receipt of the extensive documentation (Exhibit J) being presented to the Board.  
 
Mr. Robinson said a review had also been performed on thirty-four (34) existing tower 
sites in Rowan County and the impact those sites have had on the value or marketability 
in and around those areas.  Mr. Robinson said he had collected significant sales data 
throughout the county and described the following methods used to determine if property 
values had been affected: 

• A direct comparison between properties adjacent to the towers and 
properties not adjacent. 

• A ring study to determine if the value trends for the county are occurring 
around the towers as well. 

 
Mr. Robinson commended the County for ensuring that requirements are met before 
approving tower sites. 
 
Mr. Robinson said a copy of his report was included in (Exhibit J). 
 
Commissioner Andrews asked if the height of the pole had any bearing regarding Mr. 
Robinson’s findings.  Mr. Robinson responded that he had found no correlation with the 
size of the tower regarding property value and marketability. 
 
In response to a query from Commissioner Andrews regarding the proximity of adjacent 
properties, Mr. Robinson said, “there is no impact that I can see.” 
 
Mr. Thompson introduced Mr. Gilbert Nyandjo, Radio Frequency Engineer, as an expert 
witness.  
 
Mr. Nyandjo said he was employed by Wireless Facilities and read the Affidavit of 
Gilbert Nyandjo (Exhibit J).  
 
Mr. Thompson requested that the following Exhibits be included as evidence: 

1. Property Impact Analysis – J. Scott Robinson 
2. Aerial Photograph (Mounted on Foam Board) 
3. At&T Wireless FCC License 
4. Radio Frequency Map – coverage Provided by Proposed Site 
5. Radio Frequency Map – Collocation Analysis 
6. Radio Frequency Map – Public Sites 
7. Affidavit of Fred Womble 
8. Affidavit of Gilbert Nyandjo 
9. All materials submitted by Staff 

 

 7



Mr. Thompson declared that AT&T had met its burden of proving that the application 
complies with all the general and specific standards in the Zoning Ordinance.  Mr. 
Thompson requested that the Board approve the permit for the site. 
 
Chairman Blount opened the public hearing to entertain citizen comment regarding the 
application.   
 

1. The Clerk swore in Benny Springs of 340 Glenmere Lane.  Mr. Springs said 
Glenmere Lane is off of Deal Road.  Mr. Springs said that previous testimony 
indicated the proposed tower would be seen from Ervin Road.  Mr. Springs stated 
that two (2) towers are already visible from the area.  Mr. Springs felt that said 
additional towers would impact property values.  Mr. Springs said the other two 
(2) towers should be utilized rather than “putting a bunch of towers in one spot.”  

 
With no further citizen input, Chairman Blount closed the public hearing. 
 
Chairman Blount said the Board had heard testimony that indicated the two (2) towers 
had been checked based on coverage and were not acceptable.  Chairman Blount stated 
that the testimony from the real estate appraiser and the towers have no impact based on 
comparable sales. 
 
Chairman Blount read the followings Findings of Fact: 
 

1. The development of the property in accordance with the proposed 
conditions will not materially endanger the public health or safety. 

2. That the development of the property in accordance with the proposed 
conditions will not substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting 
property, or that the development is a public necessity, and 

3. That the location and character of the development in accordance with the 
proposed conditions will be in general harmony with the area in which it is 
located and in general conformity with any adopted County plans. 

 
Commissioner Belk moved to approve the conditional use permit as requested.  
Commissioner Tadlock seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR CUP-05-03, A REQUEST FROM SBA TOWERS 
 
Chairman Blount referenced the Chairman’s Speech (Exhibit A) and stated this hearing 
would focus on an application (Exhibit B) submitted by SBA Network Services for a 
telecommunication facility located on Tax Parcel 754-001 and includes the placement of 
a 150’ monopole tower on the Keith Yount property, located on Sherrills Ford Road. 
 
Chairman Blount said without objection from Board members, the Board would accept 
sworn testimony (Exhibit C) from prior witnesses that was general in nature and not 
specific to the sites.  Chairman Blount said the Board would accept that the witnesses had 
been sworn in and would not have to be sworn in again. 

 8



Ed Muire of 402 North Main Street, Rowan County Planning Department, presented the 
Staff Report (Exhibit D).   
 
Mr. Muire said the request is to construct a 150’ monopole tower on Keith Yount’s 
property on Sherrills Ford Road, adjacent to the Piedmont Research Station.  Mr. Muire 
said the property is currently in the RA District and referred to the Application (Exhibit 
B) and Site Plan (Exhibit E) in the packets. 
 
Using a power point presentation (Exhibit F), Mr. Muire showed a map of the 
surrounding properties 
 
Mr. Muire highlighted Attachment A1 (Exhibit G), which described preferred sites and 
alternate structures. 
 
Mr. Muire said placement of towers should limit the impact of towers to the NC Scenic 
By-Way and used the power point presentation (Exhibit F) to show photographs to reflect 
the visibility of the site.  
 
Mr. Muire referred to Attachment B (Exhibit H), correspondence from Fred Griffin, 
Telecommunications Consultant.  The correspondence recommended approval of the 
technical requirements.  
 
Mr. Muire stated that staff recommended approval of the site, provided that the applicant 
can satisfactorily address the conditional use criteria. 
 
Commissioner Andrews inquired about the height of the power poles.  Mr. Muire 
responded the height ranges from 88’ to 103’.  Mr. Muire said the proposed tower is 
approximately 2500’ from the other towers. 
 
Commissioner Andrews expressed concern with “a lot of towers” and said the 
transmission towers would be “a great vehicle for everyone to use.”   
 
Mr. Muire said this was a “good point” and said staff and the engineers have encouraged 
applicants to look at current towers. 
 
Bruce Thompson of Parker, Poe, Adams & Bernstein distributed books (Exhibit C) which 
detailed: 
 
1. Property Impact Analysis by J. Scott Robinson  
2. Aerial Photograph  
3. AT&T Wireless FCC License 
4. Radio Frequency Map – Coverage provided by proposed site 
5. Radio Frequency Maps – Collocation Analysis 
6. Radio Frequency Map – Public use 
7. Affidavit of Fred Womble 
8. Affidavit of Gilbert Nyandjo 

 9



Mr. Thompson said Mr. Nyandjo had studied the Duke transmission towers and his study 
was included in the book. 
 
Mr. Thompson said the witnesses were available for any questions of the Board.  Mr. 
Thompson offered the witnesses’ testimony in the written form and requested the Board 
to adopt the general statements made by the witnesses in earlier testimony, exhibits and 
materials submitted with the application, and the testimony and written materials 
submitted to staff. 
 
Mr. Thompson declared that AT&T had met its burden of proving that the application 
complies with all the general and specific standards in the Zoning Ordinance.  Mr. 
Thompson requested that the Board approve the permit for the site. 
 
Chairman Blount verified Mr. Womble, Mr. Nyandjo and Mr. Robinson agreed that their 
conclusions based on the information provided to the Board, is the same as provided in 
the previous case.  All three (3) witnesses nodded their heads in affirmation. 
 
Chairman Blount opened the public hearing to entertain citizen input regarding the 
application.  With no one wishing to address the Board, Chairman Blount closed the 
public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Belk moved to approve the conditional use permit, with the Findings of 
Fact being the same as in the prior case.  Commissioner Mitchell seconded the motion 
and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
The Findings of Fact were: 

1. The development of the property in accordance with the proposed conditions 
will not materially endanger the public health or safety. 

2. That the development of the property in accordance with the proposed 
conditions will not substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting 
property, or that the development is a public necessity, and 

3. That the location and character of the development in accordance with the 
proposed conditions will be in general harmony with the area in which it is 
located and in general conformity with any adopted County plans. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR CUP-06-03, A REQUEST FROM SBA TOWERS 
 
Chairman Blount referenced the Chairman’s Speech (Exhibit A) and stated that the 
hearing would focus on an application (Exhibit B) submitted by SBA Network Services, 
Inc. for a telecommunications facility on a portion of Tax Parcel 602-018.  The 
application includes the placement of a 150’ monopole tower on a portion of the Timothy 
Loflin property located on Crawford Road.   
 
Chairman Blount stated that the Board would accept prior testimony in a general nature 
from AT & T witnesses and their attorney (Exhibit C).  Chairman Blount said the Board 
would also accept that the four (4) witnesses and staff had been sworn in. 

 10



 
Mr. Muire referenced the Staff Report (Exhibit D) stated that the conditional use permit 
was for the Trading Ford and Loflin site, located in the RA District on the Tim Loflin 
property.  Mr. Muire said the Site Plan and Application (Exhibit B) were in the agenda 
packets.   
 
Using a power point presentation (Exhibit E), Mr. Muire showed a map of the coverage 
area and said the goal of the site is to provide coverage in the areas around Leonard Road, 
Long Ferry Road, and Crawford Road, and Goodman Lake Road.  The site would link 
with the Rowan Park site, Flint School site and provide coverage on High Rock Lake.  
Mr. Muire referred to previous concerns over the lack of coverage at the lake area and 
said the site would “going a long way towards addressing those issues.”  
 
Mr. Muire referred to Attachment A1 (Exhibit F) and Attachment A2 (Exhibit G), which 
demonstrated the need for the tower as well as preferred tower sites.  Mr. Muire showed 
pictures of the preferred sites through the power point presentation and also photographs 
depicting the proposed buffering for the site. 
 
Mr. Muire said the generic criteria are the same as the previous applications.  Mr. Muire 
referred to Attachment B (Exhibit H), correspondence from Fred Griffin, 
Telecommunications Consultant.  The correspondence recommended approval of the 
technical requirements. 
 
Bruce Thompson of Parker, Poe, Adams & Bernstein distributed books (Exhibit C) which 
detailed: 
 
1. Property Impact Analysis by J. Scott Robinson  
2. Aerial Photograph  
3. AT&T Wireless FCC License 
4. Radio Frequency Map – Coverage provided by proposed site 
5. Radio Frequency Maps – Collocation Analysis 
6. Radio Frequency Map – Public use 
7. Affidavit of Fred Womble 
8. Affidavit of Gilbert Nyandjo 
 
Mr. Thompson said through the testimony and exhibits that were offered by staff, AT&T 
Wireless had met the specific standards that are in the ordinance.  Mr. Thompson stated 
that general testimony provided by Mr. Womble, Mr. Nyandjo and Mr. Robinson, as 
exhibits in the notebook are further proof of meeting specific standards and also of 
meeting the general standards in Rowan County.  Mr. Thompson requested the Board to 
approve the permit. 
 
Chairman Blount verified Mr. Womble, Mr. Nyandjo and Mr. Robinson agreed that their 
conclusions based on the information provided to the Board, is the same as provided in 
the previous case.  All three (3) witnesses nodded their heads in affirmation. 
 

 11



Chairman Blount opened the public hearing to entertain citizen input regarding the 
proposed site.  With no one wishing to address the Board, Chairman Blount closed the 
public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Tadlock moved to approve the conditional use permit as requested with 
the Findings of Fact as indicated in the prior case.  Commissioner Belk seconded the 
motion and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
The Findings of Fact were: 

1. The development of the property in accordance with the proposed conditions 
will not materially endanger the public health or safety. 

2. That the development of the property in accordance with the proposed 
conditions will not substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting 
property, or that the development is a public necessity, and 

3. That the location and character of the development in accordance with the      
proposed conditions will be in general harmony with the area in which it is 
located and in general conformity with any adopted County plans.   

 
Chairman Blount called for a short break at 8:45 pm.   
 
The meeting reconvened at 8:50 pm.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR CUP-09-03/Z-09-03, TO ESTABLISH A MHO IN THE 
RR DISTRICT 
 
Chairman Blount declared the public hearing for Z-09-03 and CUP-09-03 to be in session 
and stated that the hearing focused on an application (Exhibit A) submitted by Patricia 
Hill for the establishment of a mobile home overlay (MHO) on Tax Parcel 474-004.  The 
proposed overlay would apply to 1.5 acres of a parcel located at 1420 and 1440 Miller 
Chapel Road in Salisbury.  
 
The Clerk swore in those wishing to provide testimony in the case. 
 
Ed Muire, Assistant County Planner, provided the Staff Report (Exhibit B) in the case.  
Mr. Muire mentioned that Commissioner Andrews had heard the case when the Planning 
Board discussed it in March. 
 
Mr. Muire said Ms. Hill had requested the MHO in the Rural Residential District (RR).  
Mr. Muire explained that the case was really a case of “nonconforming uses and making 
them conforming uses” in the Zoning Ordinance.   
 
Mr. Muire discussed the background saying that Ms. Hill had obtained the 9.2-acre tract 
in 1990 and had maintained two (2) septic tanks and a well on the property for use as two 
(2) rental manufactured home spaces.  Mr. Muire reported that the implementation of 
countywide zoning in 1998 allowed for continued occupancy of the rental spaces as a 
legal nonconforming use.  Mr. Muire continued by reporting that an amendment to the 

 12



zoning ordinance in 1999, requiring establishment of an MHO for placement of 
singlewide homes, did not affect the grandfathered status of the rental units.  Mr. Muire 
reported that a recent lapse in occupancy for a period greater than 180 days had changed 
the status to a nonconforming use that no longer allows the unit to be replaced. 
 
Mr. Muire explained that the Board had received a rezoning request to establish a MHO 
as required and also a request for a conditional use permit.  
 
Mr. Muire highlighted the Zoning Review contained in the Staff Report (Exhibit B) as 
well as the map (Exhibit C) that depicted the various land uses for the surrounding areas. 
 
Mr. Muire discussed the Conditional District Review (Exhibit B). 
 
Mr. Muire said staff recommended approval of the request. 
 
Mr. Muire said that two (2) people spoke in favor of the request at a courtesy hearing 
held by the Planning Board on March 24, 2003.  The Planning Board voted 8-0 for 
approval of the request. 
 
Chairman Blount opened the public hearing to entertain citizen comment.  With no 
citizens wishing to address the Board, Chairman Blount closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Andrews moved to approve Z-09-03 and CUP-09-03 as presented by staff, 
followed by a second from Commissioner Tadlock.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Chairman Blount declared the Findings of Fact to be that the testimony presented 
indicated there would be no negative impact on the surrounding neighborhoods and meets 
all of the county’s criteria for a conditional use permit. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR Z-07-03, A REZONING FROM MHP TO RA 
 
Matt Ward, Planning Staff member, presented the background, reporting that property 
owner and petitioner, Jerry McCullough, of 275 Forsaken Drive had requested a rezoning 
of property from MHP (Manufactured Home Park) to RA (Rural Agricultural).  Mr. 
Ward identified the property as Tax Map 127A 079 lots 146-165. 
 
Mr. Ward informed the Board that the applicant had met all of the required criteria for the 
rezoning.  
 
Mr. Ward said the Planning Board unanimously recommended approval of the rezoning 
request at its March 24, 2003 meeting and that staff also recommended approval.  
 
Chairman Blount opened the public hearing to entertain citizen comments. 
 

1. Tim Chastine of 190 Red Leaf Lane said he was a taxpayer and several neighbors 
would like to see a buffer around the doublewides.  Mr. Chastine said his home 

 13



was valued at $300,000 –plus, as well as several others homes in the area.  Mr. 
Chastine said that he and the other neighbors were a “little disgruntled” about the 
manufactured homes “being pulled in.”  Mr. Chastine referred to a $70,000 rental 
property being down the street from a $300,000 home and said it would hurt the 
property value.  Mr. Chastine said, “mine went up $42,000 from last year.” 

 
2. Judy James of 280 Red Leaf Lane spoke of a lot of unnecessary traffic on the road 

and felt that the placement of the mobile homes would also increase the traffic.  
Ms. James said she wouldn’t mind if the road was a dead-end.  Ms. James agreed 
with the comments made by Mr. Chastine pertaining to property values.  

 
With no further citizen comment, Chairman Blount closed the public hearing. 
 
Chairman Blount verified with staff that the request was to rezone from a mobile home 
park to RA.  Chairman Blount stated that Mr. McCullough was currently allowed to place 
mobiles on the property.  Chairman Blount stated that RA would increase the zoning 
requirements.  Chairman Blount stated that the Board does not have authority to close 
roads nor does it have the authority to require conditions on a rezoning, such as buffers. 
 
Chairman Blount responded to a query from Commissioner Belk that mobile homes are 
allowed in the RA District and allowed in the MHP District.  Chairman Blount clarified 
that with either zoning classification, two (2) mobile homes are acceptable on the 
property.  Mr. Ward added additional comments from the audience that was not audible 
on tape. 
 
Commissioner Andrews inquired as to why the property owner had requested the 
rezoning.  Mr. Ward responded that Mr. McCullough felt the property would be “more 
marketable” if it were zoned RA. 
 
Commissioner Tadlock moved to approve the rezoning as requested, from MHP to RA. 
The motion was seconded Commissioner Mitchell and passed unanimously.   
 
 FINAL PRESENTATION OF THE EASTERN I-85 CORRIDOR REZONING 
(FROM THE 3/17/03 COMMISSION MEETING) 
 
Mr. Lytle discussed the final recommendations for the I-85 rezoning.  Mr. Lytle referred 
to spreadsheets in the Board’s packets that listed persons who spoke at the workshop 
and/or hearing held on March 17, 2003.   
 
Mr. Lytle stated that two (2) of the changes listed on the spreadsheet did not reflect the 
wishes of the owners that had been expressed at the March meeting.   Mr. Lytle discussed 
the two (2) requests and the staff recommendations for the parcels. 
 
In response to a query from Commissioner Mitchell, Mr. Lytle said that Items #4 and #5 
on the spreadsheet were misprints and should read CBI for the proposed zoning.  The 
items were listed correctly as CBI on the map. 

 14



Commissioner Andrews moved to adopt the proposed rezoning as presented by Staff, 
followed by a second from Commissioner Belk.   
 
Commissioner Belk expressed appreciation to the Planning Department for working with 
the citizens in the rezoning process.  Commissioner Tadlock commended the department 
as well. 
 
The motion passed unanimously.  
 
DISCUSSION ON SENATE BILL 160 AND CONSIDERATION OF 
SUPPORT/NON-SUPPORT 
 
Chairman Blount discussed the proposed Senate Bill 160 that would expand the authority 
granted to the Board.  Chairman Blount referred to correspondence, which requested the 
Board to send a letter of support to Senate Judiciary I Committee members.  Chairman 
Blount was of the opinion that the proposed bill doesn’t have “a chance of going very 
far.” 
 
Commissioner Tadlock asked if user fees would “come under this criteria.”  Mr. Russell 
explained that the attempt of the bill is to broaden the authority of counties regarding 
development fees, impact fees, etc. 
 
Mr. Russell verified to Commissioner Tadlock that currently the county would have to 
acquire permission to implement an impact fee. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell felt that Dillon’s Rule had served well for 100 years and that 
changing to the Home Rule system could prove to be “potentially very dangerous.” 
 
Commissioner Mitchell moved to oppose Senate Bill 160 followed by a second from 
Commissioner Tadlock. 
 
Commissioner Andrews also agreed that Dillon’s Rule had served counties well and said 
he was opposed to the proposed Senate Bill 160. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
DISCUSSION ON SENATE BILL 277 AND CONSIDERATION OF 
SUPPORT/NON-SUPPORT 
 
Chairman Blount discussed proposed Senate Bill 277 and said the bill proposed to 
exempt property that is held by a non-profit agency in trust for a public or private 
university from local ad valorem taxation.   Chairman Blount was of the opinion that this 
is “another way to chip away at the tax base” and suggested that the Board oppose Senate 
Bill 277. 
 

 15



Commissioner Tadlock moved to oppose Senate Bill 277.  Commissioner Belk seconded 
the motion. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell felt the bill would encourage developers to support local exempt 
agencies and gave an example of “someone” trusting land to Rowan Cabarrus 
Community College. 
 
After further discussion, the motion carried on a 4-1 vote with Commissioner Mitchell 
opposed. 
 
BOARD APPOINTMENTS 
 
Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee 
Rita Foil, Clerk to the Board, discussed a communication issue regarding membership on 
the Committee.   
 
Commissioner Tadlock said the Board should do “all we can” to retain committee 
members and requested to postpone action.  
 
Chairman Blount requested that Ms. Foil provide the Board with further details at a 
future meeting. 
 
Rowan County Nursing Home Advisory Committee 
Commissioner Tadlock moved to reappoint Betty Sunding to the committee.  The motion 
carried. 
 
Centralina Workforce Development Board (WDB) 
The Clerk said she had received information earlier in the day, for a potential applicant to 
serve on the Board and should be able to provide more information at a later date.    
 
Locke Volunteer Fire Department 
Commissioner Mitchell moved to appoint James Wilhelm, Jr. as a commissioner for 
Locke Volunteer Fire Department.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Rowan County Rescue Squad Board 
Commissioner Belk said she was pursuing the two (2) appointments that were needed to 
fill vacancies on the Board. 
 
Rowan County Special Populations Advisory Board 
Commissioner Belk moved to approve Cheryl Olsen, John Harer, Mary Showfety and 
Mitzi Rusher for the Board.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 

 16



ADDITIONS 
Item 13.1 Discussion Regarding a School Location Focus Group 
Chairman Blount informed the Board that he had attended a meeting last week with Tim 
Russell, David Aycoth, School Staff, County Staff and a representative from 
Construction Control.  A handout was distributed.  Chairman Blount said the meeting 
focused on a preliminary review of the proposed school sites.  Chairman Blount asked the 
Board to approve a group of individuals consisting of:  Mayor Fred Steen, Mayor Joe 
Sloop, Mayor Kluttz, Principals from the five (5) high schools, Jeff Smith of the 
Chamber of Commerce, local businessmen – Bruce Jones, Jake Alexander and a few 
others.  The Focus Group would meet May 5th at 7:00, to publicly discuss the location of 
the new high school.    Chairman Blount asked for the Board’s “blessing” to call the 
group together and said that he and Chairman Aycoth would facilitate the meeting.      
By consensus, the Board agreed to the request. 
 
Item 13.2 Consideration of the Construction Management Contract  
Mr. Russell discussed the handout previously distributed and said it was the final revised 
proposal that was secured with Construction Control Corporation (CCC).  Mr. Russell 
reviewed the fee breakdown and discussed the efforts made to save costs on the project.   
 
Mr. Russell recommended that the Board accept the proposal and authorize the school 
system to enter into a contract with CCC. 
 
In response to a query from Commissioner Mitchell, Mr. Russell explained the Direct 
Cost items in the handout. 
 
Commissioner Belk moved to approve the recommendation of the School Board to enter 
into a contract with CCC based on the budget price as presented.  Commissioner Tadlock 
seconded the motion. 
 
Commissioner Belk said she had been a part of the architect review team and said she 
looked forward to the relationship with CCC.  Commissioner Belk felt the contract would 
save money for the taxpayers. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Item 13.3 DOT Maintenance Funds 
Marion Lytle, County Planner, distributed a handout and discussed funds that would be 
available for DOT maintenance for a program titled: “Moving Ahead,” which addresses 
modernization and maintenance needs for fiscal years 2003-04 and 2004-05.  
 
Mr. Lytle said that he had spoken with DOT District Engineer, Chris Corriher, and Mr. 
Corriher said there was approximately $1 million in funds available for road 
improvements Division 9.    
 
Mr. Lytle highlighted the information in the handout and reviewed proposed projects.  
Mr. Lytle also reviewed the county staff project recommendations.   

 17



 
Mr. Lytle said the deadline for turning in recommendations to the State is May 2, 2003.  
Mr. Lytle suggested scheduling a special meeting, possibly in the next week, to finalize 
the list to be submitted. 
 
After several questions from Board members, Mr. Lytle recommended meeting next 
week to create a list for the DOT. 
 
By consensus, the Board agreed to meet April 28, 2003 at 5:30 pm. 
 
Item 13.4 Discussion Concerning a Motor Cross Racetrack  
Mr. Lytle provided the Board with correspondence and documentation regarding the 
background of motorcycle riding activities on Black Road.  Mr. Lytle highlighted the 
chronology of events that had occurred at the site and said that Mr. Casper currently has 
violations that are approximately $5,000.  Mr. Lytle felt that the issue should “proceed in 
court.” 
 
By consensus the Board agreed that the case should be turned over to the County 
Attorney for appropriate action. 
 
Commissioner Belk said she was still receiving pictures of events that occur at the site.  
Mr. Lytle requested Commissioner Belk to forward the pictures to him to be retained on 
file. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
There were no citizens present who wished to address the Board. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT 
 
Chairman Blount mentioned that it was Commissioner Tadlock’s birthday and the Board 
joined in a chorus of “Happy Birthday.” 
 
REVISIT ITEM #3 
 
Ms. Foil requested the Board to revisit agenda Item #3, in which the Board approved text 
amendments to the Rowan County Ambulance Ordinance.  Ms. Foil explained that all 
proposed text changes to the Rowan County Code of Ordinances must go through a 
public hearing process prior to approval. 
 
Commissioner Tadlock moved to rescind the previous approval of text amendments and 
to schedule a public hearing at the Board’s next meeting at a time to be designated by the 
Clerk.  Commissioner Belk seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
 

 18



 19

ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business, Chairman Blount recessed the meeting to 5:30 pm on April 28, 
2003.  
 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
      Rita K. Foil, CMC 
      Clerk to the Board 
 
 


	 "`�j�j
	MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE

